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KEY FIGURES (CAS)
2011
Total sales (CZK m)

135,984

EBITDA (CZK m)

585

Operating result (CZK m)

546

Profit before taxation (CZK m)

9,233

Profit after taxation (CZK m)

9,351

Investments (CZK m)
Number of employees (converted to FTE)

96
408

CAS means Czech Accounting Standards.
RWE Transgas, a.s. is hereinafter also referred to as “the Company” or “RWE Transgas”.
In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of the annual report
takes precedence over the English version.
The financial statements have been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters
of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of the annual report
takes precedence over the English version.
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of Reliable Energy
in the Czech Republic
The RWE Group entered the Czech energy market as a major investor. Today, its two million customers
regard it as a reliable supplier of not only natural gas but also electricity. Nine out of ten residents
of the Czech Republic know the RWE brand. Milestones in the history of RWE in the Czech Republic:

2 May 2001
The National Property Fund of the Czech Republic
establishes Transgas, a.s. (joint stock company).
29 January 2002
The National Property Fund of the Czech Republic
and RWE Gas Aktiengesellschaft sign
an agreement on the privatisation of Transgas, a.s.
and equity interests in what were then regional
distribution companies.
16 May 2002
RWE Gas Aktiengesellschaft pays 4.1 billion euro
for 96.9 percent of Transgas shares and the
minority interests in regional distribution
companies. It would later buy the remaining
interest in Transgas and become its 100% owner.
1 April 2005
RWE renames Transgas as RWE Transgas and puts
it in charge of managing all activities on the
Czech market. A strong energy group originates,
the RWE Group in the Czech Republic.
1 January 2006
In line with new EU legislation, RWE Transgas
demerges the operation of the natural gas
transmission system from its business.
RWE Transgas Net, s.r.o., in 2010 renamed
NET4GAS, s.r.o., came into existence.

1 May 2007
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. comes into existence
via unbundling from RWE Transgas; it operates
six underground gas storage facilities
at Dolní Dunajovice, Tvrdonice, Štramberk,
Lobodice, Třanovice and Háje.
22 July 2008
The Group begins to appear in the Czech Republic
under the single RWE brand. Gradually, the
RWE Transgas, RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. and
regional gas companies’ logos are withdrawn.
1 August 2008
RWE expands its gas business and enters the
Slovak market through RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of RWE Transgas.
7 January 2009
RWE Transgas and companies in the RWE Group
successfully cope with the disruption in Russian
natural gas supplies across Ukraine. For 14 days
following the interruption, they reliably supply the
Czech Republic and, in addition, for the first time
ever the natural gas stream is reversed to flow
from west to east.
1 January 2010
RWE enters the Czech electricity market.
It offers electricity on advantageous terms
to all customer categories.
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1 The Chairman’s Statement
A very demanding and challenging year has come
to its end. A year that completely changed the
stance of Germany on nuclear energy, with all its
consequences for neighbouring countries.
And a year in which some EU countries such
as Greece got into serious financial problems
with a negative impact on economic growth
in Europe.
In 2011 the gas market in the Czech Republic
continued to be very competitive and highly
volatile. The large difference between the high
oil indexed purchase price and the achievable
market prices persisted throughout the year.
Therefore, fundamental changes in our long-term
gas supply agreements, to be able to economically
market our gas, are of greatest importance.
All the necessary steps to reach this goal were
undertaken throughout the year, including the
continuation of the arbitration proceedings with
our main supplier, Russian Gazprom export.
The same applies to our other supply contracts,
where we are in different stages of negotiations.
The unfavourable pricing conditions in our supply
contracts have resulted in a further deterioration
of our market share in the Czech Republic.
Competitors made extensive use of contracting
short-term gas on international spot markets, but
also out of the transit stream flowing through
the Czech Republic. In addition, 2011 was a warm
year, thus leading to a further decrease in natural
gas consumption.

To cover the losses from trade in natural gas, the
Company drew on a part of the provisions it had
created in 2010. At the same time it started –
through the regional gas companies in the
RWE Group – to launch new services and products
with a view to retaining or reacquiring its
existing customers.
The lower volume of natural gas sales in the
Czech market was partly offset by the dynamic
growth on the electricity market. RWE Group
companies met the internally set target to win
100,000 customers as early as September.
By the end of the year, nearly 140,000 customers
bought electricity from RWE Group companies
in the Czech Republic.
Our subsidiary company RWE Gas Slovensko, the
second most important gas supplier in Slovakia,
also registered success. With total sales of some
11 TWh we currently hold a market share of ~20%.
Besides industrial customers of different sizes,
we were also successful in acquiring some 30,000
new customers in the mass consumer segment.
The year 2011 saw the continuation, and partly
finalisation, of major infrastructure investments
by our subsidiaries NET4GAS and
RWE Gas Storage. NET4GAS successfully
completed the construction of the STORK gas
pipeline, which now interconnects the Czech
and Polish gas transmission systems for the
first time ever. It also inaugurated the Brandov
border transfer station, which connects the Czech
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transmission system with the German OPAL
gas pipeline, an extension of the Nord Stream
gas pipeline. RWE Gas Storage completed the
expansion of its Třanovice underground storage
capacity, a project financially supported by the
European Union. RWE Gas Storage’s capacity
has increased to more than 2.6 bcm and
covers approximately one-third of the annual
consumption of natural gas in the Czech Republic.
In the overall difficult market environment, our
Group has initiated various projects intended
to improve efficiency and achieve savings.
The process of optimising overhead and
operating costs is ongoing. We are also focusing
on redesigning processes in the areas of sales,
product development and commodity portfolio
management. These activities also aim
at shortening the time needed for responding
to customers’ changing requirements and reacting
to intense competition.

Despite all the difficulties encountered in 2011,
the Company was successful in keeping its
leadership in the Czech natural gas market
and in growing RWE Group’s position
in electricity sales.
I would like to thank all our employees for their
commitment and effort throughout 2011 and all
our customers and partners for their loyalty and
trust. I look forward to our future co-operation.

Martin Herrmann
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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2 Report of the Supervisory Board for 2011

The Supervisory Board continuously monitored
the Company’s business activities, its results and
the Board of Directors’ performance of its powers
and responsibilities in the past period. In 2011
the Supervisory Board held four ordinary meetings
and had a quorum at all times. At its meetings
the Supervisory Board discussed all matters for
which it is responsible under the relevant legal
regulations, the Company’s Articles
of Association, and the decisions adopted by the
sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the
General Meeting, including the documents that
the Supervisory Board requested from the Board
of Directors as part of its supervisory activity.
Members of the Board of Directors commented
on these documents when they were discussed
by the Supervisory Board.

In performing its supervisory activity the
Supervisory Board did not find anything
inconsistent with generally applicable
legal regulations, the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the decisions of the sole
shareholder acting in the capacity of the
General Meeting.
On 8 March 2012, the Supervisory Board reviewed
the Company’s financial statements for the period
ended on 31 December 2011, and the Board
of Directors’ proposal for the distribution
of profit, including the amount and the manner
of payment of dividends.
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Concurring with the auditor the Supervisory Board
concluded that the financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2011, its
financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Czech
accounting legislation.
The Supervisory Board recommends to the
General Meeting to approve the financial
statements for the period ended
on 31 December 2011 and the Board of Directors’
proposal for 2011 profit distribution.
The Supervisory Board expresses its gratitude
to all employees for their work performed for the
Company in 2011.

Prague, 8 March 2012

Dr Rolf Martin Schmitz
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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3	Background
3.1 Identification
Name:
RWE Transgas, a.s.
Registered office:	Limuzská 12/3135,
Praha 10 – Strašnice,
Post Code 100 98
Czech Republic
Company No.:
26460815
Legal form:
Joint Stock Company

3.2 Establishment and Inception of the Company
In its Resolution No 1072 of 1 November 2000,
the Government of the Czech Republic approved
the procedure for the privatisation of state-owned
Transgas, s.p. and minority interests in regional
distribution companies. On 2 May 2001, the
National Property Fund of the Czech Republic
removed all assets from Transgas, s.p. and
contributed them to a newly established
company, Transgas, a.s. The company was
incorporated on 18 June 2001 in the Commercial
Register maintained by the Municipal Court
in Prague, Section B, Insert 7240. In its Resolution
No 1342 of 17 December 2001, the Government
of the Czech Republic issued, under Section 10 (1)

of Act No 92/1991 on the Conditions of the
Transfer of the State’s Property to Other Persons,
as amended, a decision to privatise the State’s
equity interests in the business of Transgas, a.s.
and regional distribution companies by way
of a trade sale to RWE Gas Aktiengesellschaft,
having its registered office at Kampstrasse 49,
D-44137 Dortmund, the Federal Republic
of Germany. On 29 January 2002, the respective
Share Purchase Agreement was signed by and
between the National Property Fund of the Czech
Republic and RWE Gas Aktiengesellschaft. This
step completed the process of the privatisation
of the Czech gas industry.
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3.3 Information about Shareholders and Securities
The Company has issued 36,550,385 registered
shares in certificated form, each with a par
value of CZK 800. The only shareholder
of RWE Transgas, a.s. is RWE Gas International N.V.,
having its registered office at Willemsplein 4,
5211AK, ‘s-Hertogenbosch, the Kingdom
of the Netherlands.
On 8 December 2005, the Company entered into
a controlling agreement with RWE Energy AG.
The Company is part of the RWE Group, and
it is controlled by its parent company on the
basis of this agreement. The agreement has been
in force since 1 January 2006 and all matters
arising from the agreement are governed by the
laws of the Czech Republic. The controlling

person agrees to recompense the Company’s
loss to the extent to which such loss cannot
be covered from the Company’s reserve fund
or other available resources no later than two
years of the day of approval of the Company’s
financial statements. As a result of the
restructuring of the RWE Group, the rights and
obligations under the controlling agreement
passed to RWE Aktiengesellschaft, Essen, the
Federal Republic of Germany, with effect from
1 September 2009. The Company does not
prepare a report under Section 66a (9) of Act
No 513/1991, the Commercial Code, by virtue
of the controlling agreement.
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3.4 Governing and Supervisory Bodies

	The Company’s Board of Directors
as at 31 December 2011
Martin Herrmann

Dirk Simons

Chairman, Strategy & Communication
Born:
3 July 1967
Education:
Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität,
Münster, Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
RWE East, s.r.o. Managing Director; Chairman of the
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s., Severomoravská
plynárenská, a.s., Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.,
RWE Energie, a.s. and RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
Supervisory Boards; Member of the NET4GAS, s.r.o.,
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH, Budapesti Elektromos
Müvek Nyrt. and ÉMÁSZ Nyrt Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

Vice-Chairman, Finance
Born:
9 December 1966
Education:
Technische Hochschule Aachen, Economic Science
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None
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Dr Wolfgang Peters

Tomáš Varcop

Member, Supply & Wholesale
Born:
12 June 1953
Education:
University of Hamburg, Doctorate in Law,
Executive MBA, California State University Hayward
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Supervisory
Board
Any other business activities:
None

Member, National Sales
Born:
15 April 1965
Education:
Brno University of Technology, Faculty
of Mechanical Engineering,
MBA from University of Pittsburgh
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the Jihomoravská plynárenská a.s.,
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s. and
Východočeská plynárenská, a.s. Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

Changes in the Company’s Board of Directors in 2011:
The term of office of Tomáš Varcop, member of the Board of Directors, ended on 1 January 2011.
By a decision adopted by the sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the Company’s General Meeting,
Mr Varcop was re-elected to the Board of Directors with effect from 2 January 2011. The term of office
of Dr Wolfgang Peters, member of the Board of Directors, ended on 1 April 2011. By a decision adopted
by the sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the Company’s General Meeting, Dr Peters was
re-elected to the Board of Directors with effect from 2 April 2011.
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	The Company’s Supervisory Board
as at 31 December 2011
Dr Rolf Martin Schmitz

Dr Rolf Pohlig

Chairman
Born:
17 June 1957
Education:
Technische Hochschule Aachen, Mechanical
Engineering, Doctorate in Engineering
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE AG Board of Directors;
Chairman of RWE Power AG, RWE Deutschland AG
and Süwag Energie AG Supervisory Boards; Member
of the Essent N.V., KELAG-Kärntner Elektrizitäts-AG
and RWE Turkey Holding A.S. Supervisory Boards;
and Kärntner Energieholding Beteiligungs GmbH
Managing Director
Any other business activities:
None

Vice-Chairman
Born:
10 December 1952
Education:
Ruhr-Universität Bochum, Economics, Doctorate
in Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE AG Board of Directors;
Chairman of the RWE Pensionsfonds AG Supervisory
Board; Member of the RWE Power AG, RWE Dea AG,
RWE Deutschland AG and Essent N.V.
Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None
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Lucie Čejková

Michal Pech

Member
Born:
29 January 1969
Education:
University of Economics, Prague, Faculty
of Economics and Public Administration
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None

Member
Born:
27 September 1976
Education:
University of Economics, Prague, Faculty
of International Relations; Czech University of Life
Sciences in Prague, Faculty of Engineering
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None

Axel Gerhardy

Norbert Heinrich Schürmann

Member
Born:
14 August 1971
Education:
Georg-August Universität, Göttingen, Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the TE Plomin d.o.o. Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

Member
Born:
5 May 1961
Education:
Technische Hochschule Aachen, Buildings and
Water Structures
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Chairman of the Východoslovenská energetika a.s.
Board of Directors
Any other business activities:
None
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Dr Filip Thon

Andreas Günter Zetzsche

Member
Born:
17 June 1972
Education:
Institute of Chemical Technology Prague, doctorate
at VŠB-Technical University of Ostrava
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Chairman of the RWE Polska S.A. Board of Directors;
RWE East, s.r.o. Managing Director; Vice-Chairman
of the Východoslovenská energetika a.s.
Supervisory Board; Member of the Essent N.V.
Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

Member
Born:
20 January 1956
Education:
European Business School Eltville, Master
in Business Administration
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None

Šárka Vojíková
Member
Born:
22 September 1967
Education:
Grammar school in Prague, a social law college
in Prague
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

Changes in the Company’s Supervisory Board in 2011:
By a decision of the sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the Company’s General Meeting,
Dr Rolf Martin Schmitz, Andreas Günter Zetzsche and Norbert Heinrich Schürmann were elected to the
Supervisory Board with effect from 1 January 2011. On 2 March 2011, the Supervisory Board elected
Dr Rolf Martin Schmitz as the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
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3.5 Persons responsible for the Annual Report and for the audit
of the financial statements
Auditor and the audit company responsible for reviewing the financial statements
of RWE Transgas, a.s. for 2011
Audit company:
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Praha 2, Czech Republic
Registered in the Register of Audit Companies
with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic
under Licence No. 021

Responsible auditor:
Tomáš Bašta
Licence No. 1966

Prague, 9 March 2012

Person responsible for accounting
Lucie Čejková
Head of Accounting RWE Transgas, a.s.

Persons responsible for the 2011 Annual Report of RWE Transgas, a.s.
The undersigned hereby affirm that the disclosures in this Annual Report are true and that no material
circumstances have been omitted or distorted.

Martin Herrmann

Dirk Simons

Chairman of the Board of Directors 	Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
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4	Management Report for 2011
4.1 Results
Revenues, expenses and profit
In 2011, the Company achieved a profit after
taxation of CZK 9,351 million. Profit before
taxation amounted to CZK 9,233 million.

In 2011, the financial result amounted
to CZK 8,687 million; it was made up of, among
others, transferred profits of the Company’s
subsidiaries NET4GAS, s.r.o., and
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
2011
(CZK million)

Added value

2010
(CZK million)

(2,553)

2,733

Increase (+) / decrease (-) in operating provisions

3,507

(16,485)

Other operating charges and income

(409)

(400)

Financial result

8,687

6,541

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities
Net profit (loss) after taxation

119

2,751

9,351

(4,859)

In 2011, RWE Transgas’s operating result amounted
to CZK 546 million. Operating income amounted to
CZK 142,709 million while operating charges were
CZK 142,163 million. In comparison with 2010, the
operating result went up by CZK 14,697 million.

In 2011, the Company invested CZK 96 million
in fixed tangible assets. The increase
in investments compared with 2010 is attributable
to the acquisition of the assets of a subsidiary,
RWE Interní služby, s.r.o., for CZK 86 million.

The Company reports a negative added value
of minus CZK 2,553 million. The significant drop
of CZK 5,286 million compared with the preceding
year has confirmed the persistently unfavourable
development on the natural gas market. In 2010,
this negative development was offset by creating
a provision for future losses and risks arising
from signed long-term gas purchase contracts
and the expected unfavourable trend in market
prices. In 2011, this provision was decreased
by CZK 4,622 million.

Structure of assets and liabilities
Structure of assets
The Company’s total assets decreased by 0.45%
to CZK 134,595 million in 2011. Fixed assets
accounted for 51.23% of total assets. Fixed
assets were worth CZK 68,959 million and were
mostly made up of long-term investments worth
CZK 68,414 million and also tangible fixed assets
worth CZK 545 million.
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Current and other assets dropped
by CZK 2,354 million year-on-year and amounted
to CZK 65,636 million as at 31 December 2011.
In the current assets category, short-term
receivables went down by CZK 7,761 million,
long-term receivables went up by CZK 109 million
and inventories increased by CZK 5,826 million.

Financial assets decreased by CZK 566 million
while other assets increased by CZK 39 million.
Short-term receivables accounted for 64% and
inventories for 28% of current and other assets.

Structure of assets (CZK million)
1,268

702

3,550

373

12,842

67,211

49,957
Year

3,659

412

18,668

68,959

42,196
2010

Fixed assets

2011
Short-term receivables

Inventories

Financial assets

Long-term receivables

Other assets

Structure of equity and liabilities (CZK million)
22

4

39,693

76,959

18,526
Year

84,016

13,963
2010

Equity

36,612

2011
Provisions

Short-term liabilities

Other liabilities
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The drop in short-term receivables was mainly
caused by a smaller volume of short-term credit
and loans provided to the RWE Group companies.
Due to a significant decrease in gas consumption
on the Czech market, less gas was withdrawn from
underground gas storage facilities, which resulted
in an increase in the gross value of gas inventories
compared with the preceding year.
Structure of shareholder’s equity & liabilities
The Company’s equity increased
by CZK 7,056 million to CZK 84,016 million
in 2011, and accounted for 62.42% of the
Company’s total shareholder's equity and
liabilities. The reserve fund decreased
by CZK 4,859 million due to offsetting the
Company’s losses for 2010.
In 2011, as in the preceding period, RWE Transgas
financed its activities mainly using its own
resources. Borrowings and other liabilities amounted
to CZK 50,580 million and were made up of short-term
liabilities, 72%, and provisions, 28%.
Risk management
At RWE Transgas, the responsibility for risk
management falls within the remit of the risk
management committee, whose members are
representatives of the Company’s management.

The Company records all identified risks in the Risk
Catalogue. All risks are also recorded in a matrix
of risks, which helps to identify the most serious
risks in terms of the probability of their occurrence
and size of potential damage. RWE Transgas
covers the most significant risks with the help
of insurance, hedging transactions, caps on risk
positions, provisioning, and application of various
preventive measures, depending on the nature
of each particular risk.
The Company re-measures all derivatives
at their fair value as at the balance sheet day.
RWE Transgas does not use hedge accounting.
Research and Development
The Company does not carry out research and
development of new products.
The Company’s organisational units abroad
On 28 August 2008, the Company
established its organisational unit
in the Slovak Republic under the name
of RWE Transgas, a.s. organizačná zložka;
registered office at Mlynská 31, 042 91 Košice;
it is incorporated in the Commercial Register
of the Košice District Court under Company
No. (IČO): 36 859 877.
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4.2 Gas Business
Gas purchase
In 2011, RWE Transgas’s purchase portfolio
mainly included long-term supply contracts.
The Company bought natural gas from Russia
(it has the largest supply contract in place
with Gazprom export LLC) and Norway (supply
contracts with four different Norwegian suppliers).
On the one hand, this pattern of gas procurement
helped to diversify the portfolio and improve
the situation in terms of security of supply;
on the other hand, however, it complicated
RWE Transgas’s competitive position. In 2011,
the negative spread between the market price
of natural gas and purchase prices under long-term
contracts with gas producers persisted, which
resulted in further volume and price pressure in
the Czech market and further loss of market share.

The price level under most of these contracts
is mainly determined by the development of oil
and coal prices in international markets and
the development of exchange rates. In 2011,
the negative spread between the market price
of natural gas and purchase prices under long-term
contracts with gas producers persisted.
Two arbitrations with Gazprom export LLC were
running throughout the year. One of them has as its
subject matter a dispute over the level of minimum
offtake levels. The other arbitration has as its
subject matter the adaptation of import price
conditions towards the prevailing competitive levels
in the wider Czech market. Talks on adjustments
to prices under long-term contracts also took place
or are still under way with some other suppliers.
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Gas sales
In 2011, RWE Transgas facilitated a supply
of 48.7 TWh of natural gas to customers in the
Czech Republic. The year-on-year drop of 27% was
largely caused by growing competition on the
retail and wholesale gas markets. Competitors
boosted their activity not only thanks to the
continued liberalisation of the Czech gas industry
but also due to the persisting negative spread
between the market price of gas and its price
under long-term contracts with producers.
In 2011, RWE Transgas continued to strengthen
its position in gas supply in Slovakia. It facilitated
a supply of 11 TWh to counterparties, which means
a year-on-year increase of 41%. The Company
achieved this excellent result primarily thanks
to retaining key accounts in the segment of large
business customers and developing sales to the
segment of smaller business customers by its
subsidiary company RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o., and
also thanks to its entry into the household market
in Slovakia in 2011.
In other international markets, RWE Transgas
facilitated the supply of a net volume of 38.9 TWh
in the traded markets. Throughout 2011, natural
gas, including the related services, was supplied
to partners and customers in line with contractual
obligations.
As in 2010, natural gas was sold in the
Czech Republic through the VOP system
(Wholesale Sales System) in 2011 again. The
VOP system provides for transparent and nondiscriminatory sale to all customers in the Czech
wholesale market. In response to the development

of the Czech wholesale gas market, in 2011 the
range of products offered in the VOP system was
further expanded and adjusted so as to better
match the current market conditions. These
changes were introduced gradually from July 2011
and met with a positive response on the part
of customers.
Gas transmission
In 2011, RWE Transgas held gas transport
agreements with Moscow-based Gazprom export
LLC, Leipzig-based Verbundnetz Gas AG, and
Kassel-based Wintershall AG. Approximately
26.5 bcm of natural gas was transported across
the Czech Republic in 2011.
The Company bought all services related to gas
transmission across the Czech Republic from
NET4GAS, s.r.o. This Transmission System
Operator not only provides reliable supplies for
the Czech market but is also an important part
of the European transit system for natural
gas deliveries.
The putting into operation of a new border
transfer station at Brandov on the national border
with Germany on 1 October 2011 is a major
change in the system of gas transport across the
Czech Republic. This new border transfer point
has connected the Czech system to the OPAL/
Nord Stream gas pipeline, and it has significantly
expanded gas transport options for the
Czech Republic. Further, on 14 September 2011
the interconnection between the Czech Republic
and Poland via the STORK gas pipeline was put
into operation.
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4.3 Business, Marketing and Communication Activities
Business strategy
In 2011, the strategic business priorities of the
RWE Group companies in the Czech Republic
directly followed up on the objectives pursued
in the preceding period. They focused on retaining
the existing market share in natural gas sales, and
also on a dynamic growth in the electricity market
into which RWE entered with great determination
in 2010.
RWE Transgas sold natural gas through the
RWE Group’s regional gas companies. Their
achievements in the natural gas and electricity
markets were heavily impacted by highly active
competitors. These included both the incumbent
suppliers, who now offer both of these key
commodities, and many smaller challengers that
operate either in selected regions or throughout
the Czech Republic. The persisting surplus
of natural gas on the European gas market was
another major factor that determined the changes
on the market.
As competition grew keener, unfair competition
practices also appeared on the market,
primarily on the part of some smaller energy
suppliers’ sales representatives. RWE Transgas
and the RWE Group’s companies continuously
advised customers of the risks associated with
signing a contract under duress and of the
disadvantageous terms and conditions hidden
behind formulations such as “the activation fee”.

The National Sales division of RWE Transgas
proactively tackled these challenges and during
2011 devised a number of major innovations
to the products and services intended for the
household segment and for businesses. Their
purpose was to enhance customers’ satisfaction
with the current offering of gas and electricity
from RWE. In the corporate segment, offers
of structured products and solutions customised
to key accounts were an integral part of these
efforts. Part of this strategy was also a proactive
attitude, i.e. approaching all customers in
distribution areas outside the original zones
covered by the RWE Group companies in the
Czech Republic.
In its business activities, the Company also
consistently applied measures in business risk
management to prevent undesirable impacts
on RWE Transgas’s finances.
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Marketing activities
In 2011, RWE Transgas’s centralised Sales
& Marketing department focused on retaining
the existing portfolio of RWE’s customers who
take natural gas in the Household and Small
Customer categories, and on a dynamic increase
in the number of new electricity customers.
Attaining these objectives was based both on the
development of new products and on continuous
improvements in customer services and care.
The changes at all levels were based on a single
shared idea: the customers and their needs are
at the centre of RWE’s interest at all times.
In electricity sales, new products enabling
to fix the commodity charge were launched (for
example, RWE Stabil 2013+, and RWE Garance 24)
during 2011. The continuous offering of the RWE
Standard product was also supported. Customers
favourably accepted the newly introduced service
of tariff advice, which helps them to optimise

the distribution tariffs depending on their
consumption. The continued offering of a financial
bonus for executing an agreement on multiple
supply points also registered success. The related
marketing communication met with a significant
response not only across the conventional
media but also in social networks, where tens
of thousands of users saw it or even
commented on it.
Compared with the preceding period, the
Company concentrated more on natural gas
and on the development of new offerings
for attractive prices. Hundreds of thousands
of current and new customers used the offer
of new products enabling the fixing of the natural
gas price for up to two years. Thanks to this offer,
the RWE Group in the Czech Republic has become
a major energy supplier in the Czech market, who
offers fixed electricity and natural gas prices for
up to two years.
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A broad range of services provided to all
customers of the RWE Group companies in the
Czech Republic underwent further development
and innovation. The free RWE ONLINE SERVIS
online application is one of the key services.
It offers hundreds of thousands of users the
opportunity to manage all issues related
to natural gas and electricity from the comfort
of their homes or offices, and the option
to contact RWE over the NONSTOP customer line
or in a broad network of customer centres. These
contact points of the RWE Group companies in the
Czech Republic were optimised and modernised
in 2011. Investment in the unification of their
exterior and interior features and signage resulted
in a particularly visible change.
The RWE PREMIUM loyalty scheme also played
an important role in 2011. It includes an offer
of a continuously low price for more than

4,000 items of consumer goods of renowned
brands, and discount vouchers for Viessmann gas
appliances and DEKTRADE building materials.
Nor did the Company neglect the issue of rational
energy use; it supported many activities related
to this issue. Clear-cut evidence of this effort
is a special website at setrimenergii.cz, which
offers hundreds of tips and extensive advice
on how to reduce household energy bills.
The situation on the energy market also placed
heavier demands on customer research and
analysis, which helped to understand customers’
everyday needs and to implement them in the
development of new products and services. The
operation of the database of customer portfolios
of the RWE Group companies in the Czech
Republic also underwent further innovation.
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Communication activities
Over the 10 years of RWE’s operation in the
Czech Republic, awareness of the brand has
increased from nil to today’s almost 100%.
Communication activities, coordinated and
provided by RWE Transgas’s PR & Press Services
for nearly all companies in the Group, have
contributed the lion’s share to this result and
the positive perception of the RWE brand.
This arrangement of communication ensures
a uniform presentation of the RWE Group in the
Czech Republic and the Group’s services
and attitudes.

technologies, for example, CNG (compressed
natural gas) and e-mobility in transport,
were promoted.

The advantages of a uniform communication
strategy are most visible in media communication.
Through media communication, RWE Group
companies in the Czech Republic pursued the
objective of raising a high profile as customerfocused major suppliers of natural gas and
electricity in 2011. Both the broad range and high
quality of their services on offer as well as their
active approach to the deployment of innovative

RWE KARTA (RWE CARD), which brings the
advantages of the RWE – Energy of Czech Film
and RWE – Energy of Czech Skiing projects to end
customers, was successful. Thanks to this card,
customers of the RWE Group companies in the
Czech Republic can obtain discounts on Czech
films in partner multiplex cinemas, and discounts
on ski passes at partner ski resorts.

Following RWE’s entry into the electricity
market, and in an effort to maintain its current
position on the natural gas market, last year’s
communication activities were more geared
towards acquiring new and retaining current
customers than in previous years. To this end,
RWE Transgas and regional gas companies in the
RWE Group in the Czech Republic used the longestablished sponsorship projects effectively.
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Four feature films supported under the
RWE – Energy of Czech Film project premiered
in 2011: Matej Mináč’s document Nicky’s Family;
Odcházení (Leaving); Václav Havel’s debut as a film
director; Zdeněk Troška’s fairy tale Čertova nevěsta
(The Devil’s Bride); and Jiří Vejdělek’s comedy
Muži v naději (Men in Hope), highly popular
among cinemagoers. The Company continued
its co-operation with Czech Television and
with Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio
(RWE & Barrandov Studio Film Foundation).
It was again the main partner of the Karlovy Vary
International Film Festival. As part of the
RWE – Energy of Czech Skiing project, the
Company was a partner of 16 ski resorts, and
supported skiing for the disabled, Sportovní
gymnázium (a grammar school promoting sports)
in Vrbno pod Pradědem and Sportovní akademie
(Sports Academy) in Špindlerův Mlýn. It was also
a partner of the Skiinterkriterium international ski
competition for pupils in Říčky v Orlických horách.
RWE Transgas, the general partner of the
Czech Olympic Team, and RWE Group’s regional
companies joined a nationwide road show
organised before the 2012 London Olympic Games.
The Company was also the general partner of the
Czech Paralympics Team. In 2011, RWE Transgas
was a partner of the Prague Spring International
Music Festival for the 17th time. Also in 2011 the
Company cooperated with renowned charitable
organisations, the Nadace Charty 77 foundation –
Konto BARIÉRY, the Nadace Naše dítě foundation,
the Nadace ADRA foundation, and the ŽIVOT 90
civic association.

RWE Transgas organised a number of events for
its employees, which were primarily intended
to promote corporate culture and enhance
customer focus. It organised skiing trips to partner
winter resorts and screenings of films supported
by RWE, and held the winter and summer gas
games and the Blue Day in Nové Město na Moravě,
the programme of which was also intended for
employees’ families.
The employees’ social commitment was supported
by the RWE COMPANiUS initiative geared
towards financial and organisational support for
volunteering. In 2011, a total of CZK 2.4 million
was allocated by the RWE Group, of which CZK
1.2 million from RWE Transgas’s funds, which was
distributed among 107 employee projects
in various areas.
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4.4 Human Resources
In 2011, the Company completed its project
for a transformation of personnel management
processes and reorganisation of HR. A single
centralised Human Resources Section has been
set up, working with unified and standardised
procedures at a high level of internal and external
efficiency. The section started to provide its
services to all RWE Group companies
in the Czech Republic (with the exception
of NET4GAS, s.r.o.) on 1 July 2011.
A number of HR processes have been
electronised; this has made large quantities
of important data available to employees through
the HR portal application. A new HR line, ensuring
the availability of HR services for all employees

of RWE Transgas and other RWE Group companies
in the Czech Republic, has become a single
contact point for all enquiries.
The Company continued in the Group-wide
RWE Diversity project. In 2011, it strongly focused
on gender diversity, in particular on increasing
the proportion of women in managerial positions,
on work-life balance, and on facilitating women’s
return from maternity leave. “The Woman to Lead”
programme was very successful. Its purpose was
to support women in managerial positions and
women with a potential for career development
in RWE Group companies in the Czech Republic.
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Employee structure by education, in percent
3%
69%

28%

Secondary

Complete secondary

Staffing levels
As at 31 December 2011, RWE Transgas had
447 employees on its records, of whom all
447 in technical, engineering, financial and
other professions.
Wages
Restructuring changes and the related changes
in the structure of the professions and
qualifications in the Company had a dominant
influence on the level of achieved average wages.
Wage levels developed in accordance with the
principles agreed in the Collective Agreement
and the plans and intentions of the Company’s
management in respect of human resources.
Payroll costs totalled CZK 349 million.
Professional training and development
In the area of training and human resource
development, the Company mainly focused
on upgrading its employees’ professional
qualifications and their personal development.
In 2011, programmes intended for talented
employees, Prospects (the sixth year) and TopTech
(the first year) were launched successfully.

Tertiary

All participants in the Management Academy II
received their certificates at a ceremony
concluding this year of the programme.
In 2011, the Company spent about 5% of its
payroll costs on education and development.
Altogether 1,147 educational events were
organised in 2011, which were attended
by 2,654 employees.
Average expenses on education and development
amounted to CZK 40,510 per person. Education
and development costs totalled CZK 16 million.
Social policy
The Company performed its obligations under the
Collective Agreement signed for 2010 and 2011.
In November 2011, a new Collective Agreement
for 2012 and 2013 was signed with Odborový
svaz Transgas (Transgas Trade Union) and Sdružení
základních organizací Odborového svazu UNIOS
RWE (Association of Branches of the UNIOS RWE
Trade Union). A high level of working conditions
and employee benefits will therefore also
be guaranteed for the next two years.
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4.5 Key investments in subsidiaries
RWE Transgas controlled eight subsidiary
companies in which it held 100% equity interests
in the Czech Republic and Slovakia in 2011.
Thanks to the focus of their business, these
subsidiaries suitably complement the range of the
RWE Group’s services. In terms of the quality and
reliability of their services, these subsidiaries are
among the leading companies in their respective
market segments.
In terms of assets and profit generation,
NET4GAS, s.r.o., whose core business is natural
gas transmission, is the largest subsidiary.
In 2011, NET4GAS, s.r.o. concentrated
heavily on the implementation of the relevant
amendment to the Energy Act. The application
of the amendment will change the ownership
structure of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic.
Through the planned division of RWE Transgas,
NET4GAS, s.r.o. will become its sister company.
The forthcoming changes also concern the
governance, controlling documents, and bodies
of that company, the operations of which will
be subjected to intensified surveillance by the
Energy Regulatory Office. NET4GAS, s.r.o.
continued to expand the Czech gas transmission
system and improve its efficiency. The STORK gas
pipeline was completed; it has made possible
gas transmission between the Czech Republic
and Poland, so far non-existent, thereby boosting
energy market integration in this region. It also
concentrated on the construction of the Gazelle
gas pipeline, which, following completion, will
directly interconnect the Brandov and Waidhaus
border transfer stations. The new route of the gas
pipeline will also improve the supply of Russian

natural gas flowing into Europe via the so-called
Northern Route, consisting of the Nord Stream
gas pipeline laid on the bottom of the Baltic
Sea from Russia to Greifswald, Germany, and
connecting to the OPAL gas pipeline, which runs
to the German/Czech national border near the
village of Brandov.
Natural gas storage in underground gas
storage facilities is the core business
of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. In the past period, this
company completed most of the work related
to the expansion of storage capacity in the
Třanovice underground gas storage facility.
In 2011, RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. supplied
natural gas and electricity to key accounts in the
Czech Republic. For the purpose of natural gas
trade in Slovakia, RWE Transgas established its
subsidiary company, RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.,
in that country as early as 2008. This company has
achieved the position of second largest natural
gas supplier in Slovakia.
RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. is responsible for
servicing and maintaining regional distribution
systems. Engineering design of gas systems and
selected gas installations is the core business
of the subsidiary company RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.
RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o. is responsible for
operating the customer centres and call centre
for the customers of the RWE Group in the
Czech Republic.
RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. was earlier responsible,
within the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, for
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IT operations, facility management, vehicle fleet
management and other support services.
In 2011 it was restructured and transformed into
a dedicated IT company. For these reasons,

some of the services that it had provided were
transferred to external providers and
to RWE Transgas.

4.6 Environmental Protection
Environmental protection is one of RWE Transgas’s
key priorities. This is borne out by, among other
things, assessments of the Company’s compliance
with legal requirements in this area on a regular
basis. They are carried out through internal audits,
which the Company uses as an implied tool for
reviewing corporate social responsibility.
Thanks to the nature of its business, the impact
of RWE Transgas on the environment is very
limited. The Company almost exclusively carries
out administrative and commercial activities,
which generate a very low amount of waste
(in the hazardous wastes category, its production
is almost nil), consume normal quantities
of drinking water and energy, and produce
proportionate amounts of wastewater. As part
of environmental profile analysis, all of the above
aspects are thoroughly monitored
and evaluated.

RWE Transgas steers the environmental
management system (EMS) across the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic. In 2011, the system was
subjected to independent verification by an audit
carried out by RWE AG, which confirmed that the
EMS had been implemented in compliance with
the requirements of the ISO 14001 standard and
that it was functioning to the full extent.
Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
“Safety First” is the motto of the OHS scheme,
and it perfectly encapsulates the fact that
OHS is at the top of the list of priorities
of RWE Transgas and the RWE Group companies
in the Czech Republic. The related measures,
targeted at employees and suppliers, have
become an integral part of decision-making and
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communication and are being implemented
at all levels of the organisation. In the spirit
of continuous improvements, the Company
is devising increasingly effective instruments
for identifying and eliminating risks and for
preventing occupational injuries.
In February 2011, RWE Transgas signed up to the
European Road Safety Charter and committed
to reduce road accidents and lost lives. The
programme has been named Drive Safe, and
its purpose is the maximum possible reduction
in the risk of injuries to the employees and
other road users. The key feature of the scheme
is an assessment of drivers’ behaviour in everyday
driving. In this connection, the Company focuses
on detecting and analysing potentially risky driver
behaviour that is contrary to the defensive
driving rules.
The other successfully implemented tools
for enhancing occupational health and safety
include a system of coaching aimed at safe
behaviour and a system of managers’ inspections,
oriented towards safe behaviour and dangerous

situations and conditions. To keep up with the
latest trends, the catalogue of personal protective
equipment in use was revised and it was extended
to include better and more comfortable products.
The LTIF (Lost Time Injury Frequency, i.e., the
incidence of occupational injuries resulting
in incapacity for work for more than one day
per million hours worked) rate continues
to be the main indicator of the sophistication
of corporate culture in occupational health and
safety. To upgrade the monitoring of the existing
situation and for the purpose of improvements,
the Company has decided to monitor also some
other indicators that provide a more detailed
picture of the activities in this area.
A reward for all of this is the low number
of occupational injuries. Only two minor
occupational injuries occurred at RWE Transgas
in 2011, and they did not result in any of the
employees being unable to work. Keeping a zero
accident rate all the times continues to be the
Company’s key objective.
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4.7 Subsequent Events
Company´s bodies
At the Supervisory Board meeting held
on 8 March 2012, Mr Axel Gerhardy and
Mr Norbert Heinrich Schürmann resigned,
with effect from the same date, from
their office of Supervisory Board members.
Gas purchase
The outcome of the minimum offtake level dispute
with Gazprom export LLC is expected in the
second half of 2012.
The other arbitration with Gazprom export LLC,
the subject matter of which is a price review
concerning natural gas supplies, is expected
to run for the whole of 2012. Its outcome will
be known in the first quarter of 2013.
Subsidiaries and other investments
In 2012, RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. is managed
by RWE IT Czech s.r.o. under a management
agreement. With effect from 1 January 2012,
RWE Transgas has acquired a 100% equity interest
in KA Contracting ČR s.r.o., a company whose core
business is heat production and distribution
and renewable electricity production. At the
same time RWE Transgas also acquired 15% equity
share in its subsidiary, KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.,
which operates in Slovakia.
Activities of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. related
to the preparation of DSO (Distribution
System Operator) investment projects will
be transferred to RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.
RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. will subsequently
be merged with KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.

The environment
The Company’s key objectives for 2012 include the
development and deployment of a software tool
for the management of environmental aspects and
the measurement and recording of environmental
indicators across RWE Group companies in the
Czech Republic. The tool is intended to clarify, improve
and accelerate reporting to local governments, state
administration and other stakeholders.

4.8 Outlook
In the period to come, the Company is facing major
changes in many areas, which are necessitated by,
among other things, the complicated situation on the
natural gas and electricity markets, development
of legislation, and certain other circumstances that
strongly affect RWE Transgas’s business.
These changes are also related to the general
direction followed by the RWE Group in the
Czech Republic and by the whole Group. They
may be quite demanding in some respects, but
they are needed to trigger further growth. The
Company’s objective is to retain its leadership
in the natural gas market in the Czech Republic.
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5.1 Financial Statements
BALANCE SHEET (in thousand Czech crowns)
31. 12. 2011
Ref.

ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

B.

Fixed assets

B.

I.

B.

I.

B.

II.

B.

II.

B.

III.

B.

III.

Intangible fixed assets
1.

Research & development

2.

Software

3.

Royalties
Tangible fixed assets

I.

C.

I.

C.

II.

C.

II.

C.

III.

C.

III.

C.

IV.

C.

IV.

D.

I.

D.

I.

Provision

Net

Net

136,893,897

(2,298,490)

134,595,407

135,201,054

69,687,435

(728,490)

68,958,945

67,210,577

143,572

(143,372)

200

1,222

3,964

(3,847)

117

276

126,067

(126,067)

–

–

13,541

(13,458)

83

946

1,129,827

(585,118)

544,709

490,310

1.

Land

15,994

–

15,994

15,994

2.

Constructions

682,049

(251,669)

430,380

440,995

3.

Equipment

428,801

(333,449)

95,352

32,284

4.

Other tangible fixed assets

956

–

956

956

5.

Tangible fixed assets in the course
of construction

2,017

–

2,017

39

6.

Advances paid for tangible fixed assets
Long-term investments

1.

Investments in subsidiaries

2.

Other long-term investments in securities

3.

Intra-group loans - subsidiaries and controlling
parties, associates

C.
C.

31. 12. 2010

Gross

10

–

10

42

68,414,036

–

68,414,036

66,719,045

48,315,030

–

48,315,030

63,023,539

2,675,506

–

2,675,506

2,675,506

17,423,500

–

17,423,500

1,020,000

Current assets

66,794,428

(1,570,000)

65,224,428

67,617,858

Inventories

20,238,204

(1,570,000)

18,668,204

12,842,390

16,499,026

(1,570,000)

14,929,026

9,920,698

3,739,178

–

3,739,178

2,921,692

3,658,634

–

3,658,634

3,550,034

412

–

412

410

3,658,222

–

3,658,222

3,549,624

42,195,691

–

42,195,691

49,957,115

1.

Finished goods

2.

Prepayments for inventory
Long-term receivables

1.

Trade receivables

2.

Deferred tax asset
Short-term receivables

1.

Trade receivables

2.

Receivables – subsidiaries / controlling parties

3.

Taxes and state subsidies receivable

4.

Short-term advances paid

5.

Estimated receivables

6.

Other receivables
Financial assets

3,064,976

–

3,064,976

4,463,876

16,470,633

–

16,470,633

22,734,461

–

–

–

387,247

266,257

–

266,257

249,438

15,630,401

–

15,630,401

14,776,214

6,763,424

–

6,763,424

7,345,879
1,268,319

701,899

–

701,899

1.

Cash in hand

827

–

827

1,162

2.

Cash at bank

701,072

–

701,072

1,267,157

Prepayments and accrued income

412,034

–

412,034

372,619

1.

Prepaid expenses

327,266

–

327,266

334,699

2.

Accrued income

84,768

–

84,768

37,920
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BALANCE SHEET – continued (in thousand Czech crowns)
Ref.

A.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

31. 12. 2011

31. 12. 2010

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

134,595,407

135,201,054

Equity

84,015,843

76,959,460

Share capital

29,240,308

29,240,308

Share capital

29,240,308

29,240,308

44,435,498

46,730,523

368

368

A.

I.

A.

I.

A.

II.

A.

II.

A.

III.

A.

III.

A.

V.

Profit / (loss) for the current period
Liabilities

50,577,487

58,221,437

B.

I.

Provisions

13,963,128

18,526,044

B.

I.

13,963,128

18,526,044

B.

II.

2,013

2,013

B.

II.

B.

III.

B.

III.

1.

Capital contributions
1.

Other capital contributions

2.

Assets and liabilities revaluation

1.

B.

C.

I.

C.

I.

1.

44,435,130

46,730,155

Reserve fund and other reserves

988,629

5,848,062

Legal reserve fund

988,629

5,848,062

9,351,408

(4,859,433)

Other provisions
Long-term liabilities

1.

Trade payables
Short-term liabilities

1.

Trade payables

2.

Liabilities – subsidiaries / controlling parties

2,013

2,013

36,612,346

39,693,380

1,665,227

908,145

12,259,628

19,773,432
20,752

3.

Liabilities to employees

27,452

4.

Liabilities for social security and health insurance

11,823

9,919

5.

Taxes and state subsidies payable

884,986

1,301,322

6.

Estimated payables

14,878,121

9,087,836

7.

Other payables

6,885,109

8,591,974

Accruals and deferred income

2,077

20,157

1.

Accruals

2,077

19,998

2.

Deferred income

–

159
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INCOME STATEMENT (in thousand Czech crowns)
Accounting period
Ref.

DESCRIPTION

2011

2010

Sales of production

142,562,475

114,960,624

1.

Sales of own products and services

135,984,147

118,309,691

2.

Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress

II.
II.

B.
B.

1.
2.
+

112,227,622

Raw materials and consumables

138,298,885

105,399,085

Services

6,816,555

6,828,537

(2,552,965)

2,733,002

Staff costs

472,471

364,402

Wages and salaries

348,568

263,608

2.

Emoluments of board members

3.

Social security and health insurance costs

4.

E.

2,460

2,640

110,803

87,293

Other social costs

10,640

10,861

Taxes and charges

23,848

11,398

Depreciation of fixed assets

39,064

46,559

Sale of fixed assets and raw materials

15,027

56,128

1.

Sale of fixed assets

15,027

56,118

2.

Sale of raw materials

–

10

Net book value of fixed assets and raw materials sold

3,864

35,615

1.

Net book value of fixed assets sold

3,864

35,615

(3,506,536)

16,484,607

Other operating income

131,383

23,333

Other operating charges

15,179

21,311

545,555

(14,151,429)

III.

F.
F.

145,115,440

1.

D.

III.

(3,349,067)

Cost of sales

Added value

C.
C.

6,578,328

G.

Increase / (decrease) in operating provisions
IV.

H.
*

Operating result

VII.

Income from long-term investments

9,954,598

6,665,737

1.

Income from investments in subsidiaries and associates

9,583,212

6,370,335

2.

Income from investments in other securities

371,386

295,402

Loss on investments

103,059

–

Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives

13,505,595

15,497,480

Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives

VII.

K.
IX.
L.
X.
N.
XI.
O.
*
Q.

12,103,523

14,877,275

Interest income

607,354

445,679

Interest expense

178,920

226,670

Other financial income

15,739,735

10,170,837

Other financial expense

18,734,728

11,134,557

Financial result

8,687,052

6,541,231

(118,801)

(2,750,765)

(10,204)

390,243

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities

Q.

1.
2.
**

– current
– deferred
Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation

(108,597)

(3,141,008)

9,351,408

(4,859,433)

***

Net profit / (loss) for the financial period

9,351,408

(4,859,433)

***

Net profit / (loss) before taxation

9,232,607

(7,610,198)
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Statement of changes in shareholder's equity
Year ended 31 December 2011
Share
capital
(CZK’000)

Legal
reserve fund
(CZK’000)

Capital
funds
(CZK’000)

Retained
earnings
(CZK’000)

Total
(CZK’000)

29,240,308

5,848,062

45,992,517

15,891,093

96,971,980

Revaluation gain – Financial investments

-

-

738,006

-

738,006

Dividends paid

-

-

-

(15,891,093)

(15,891,093)

As at 1 January 2010

Net loss for 2010
As at 31 December 2010

-

-

-

(4,859,433)

(4,859,433)

29,240,308

5,848,062

46,730,523

(4,859,433)

76,959,460
(2,295,025)

Revaluation loss – Financial investments

-

-

(2,295,025)

-

Settlement of loss

-

(4,859,433)

-

4,859,433

-

Net profit for 2011

-

-

-

9,351,408

9,351,408

29,240,308

988,629

44,435,498

9,351,408

84,015,843

As at 31 December 2011
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Cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2011
2011
(CZK’000)

2010
(CZK’000)

9,232,607

(7,610,198)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax
A.1

Adjustments for non-cash movements

A.1.1

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets

A.1.2

Change in provisions

A.1.3

Profit from disposal of fixed assets

A.1.4

Dividends and profit distribution income

A.1.5

Net interest income

A.1.6

Other non-cash movements

A*

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax, and changes in working capital

A.2

Working capital changes

A.2.1
A.2.2
A.2.3

39,064

46,559

(3,506,536)

16,484,607

(11,163)

(20,503)

(9,851,539)

(6,665,737)

(428,434)

(219,009)

(1,078,002)

56,874

(5,604,003)

2,072,593

Change in receivables and prepayments and accrued income

9,519,585

3,675,535

Change in short-term payables and accruals and deferred income

5,610,277

1,278,972

Change in inventories

(7,257,841)

3,349,101

A**

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax

2,268,018

10,376,201

A.3

Interest paid

(196,841)

(249,421)

A.4

Interest received

585,121

580,877

A.5

Income tax on ordinary activities received/(paid)

397,451

(1,925,200)

A.6

Dividend and profit distribution received

6,881,280

6,706,008

A***

Net cash flow from operating activities

9,935,029

15,488,465

-

(5,688)

15,027

56,118

(16,625,000)

-

Cash flows from investing activities
B.1

Acquisition of fixed assets

B.2

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

B.3

Loans to related parties

B.4

Decrease of share capital of the subsidiary

B***

Net cash flow from investing activities

15,000,000

-

(1,609,973)

50,430

(7,000,000)

6,161,987

-

(15,891,093)

(7,000,000)

(9,729,106)

Cash flows from financing activities
C.1

Change in long- and short-term liabilities

C.2

Changes in equity:

C.2.1

Profit distribution paid

C***

Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

1,325,056

5,809,789

(1,433,652)

(7,243,441)

(108,596)

(1,433,652)
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5.2 Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2011
1 General information
1.1 Introductory information about the Company
RWE Transgas, a.s. (“the Company”) was incorporated on 18 June 2001 and has its registered office
at Prague 10 – Strašnice, Limuzská 12/3135, Czech Republic. The Company’s primary business activity
is trade with natural gas in accordance with the Act. No. 458/2000 Coll. on conditions for undertaking
the business and for the execution of state administration in the energy sector and on changes
to certain decrees. Identification number of the Company is 264 60 815.
The members of the Board of Directors as at 31 December 2011 were as follows:
Name

Position

Mr Martin Friedrich Herrmann

Chairman

Mr Dirk Simons

Vice-Chairman

Mr Wolfgang Peters

Member

Mr Tomáš Varcop

Member

The members of the Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2011 were as follows:
Name

Position

Mr Rolf Martin Schmitz

Chairman

Mr Rolf Pohlig

Vice-Chairman

Ms Šárka Vojíková

Member

Mr Michal Pech

Member

Ms Lucie Čejková

Member

Mr Filip Thon

Member

Mr Axel Gerhardy

Member

Mr Andreas Günter Zetzsche

Member

Mr Norbert Heinrich Schürmann

Member

Note
The financial statements have been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or
opinions, the Czech version of the financial statements takes precedence over the English version.

45

46

financial part
Notes to Financial Statements
Obsah

As at 1 January 2011 the appointment of member of the Board of Directors Mr Tomáš Varcop expired.
Mr Varcop was reappointed as a member of the Board of Directors following the sole’s shareholder
resolution effective as of 2 January 2011. As at 1 April 2011 the appointment of member of the
Board of Directors Dr. Wolfgang Peters expired. Dr. Peters was reappointed as a member of the Board
of Directors following the sole’s shareholder resolution effective as of 2 April 2011.
Dr. Rolf Martin Schmitz, Mr Andreas Günter Zetzsche and Mr Norbert Heinrich Schürmann were
appointed as new members of the Supervisory Board following the sole’s shareholder resolution
effective from 1 January 2011. Dr. Rolf Martin Schmitz was appointed as Chairman of the Supervisory
Board following the Supervisory Board’s resolution on 2 March 2011.
The Company is organised as follows:
The General Meeting is the supreme body of the Company. The Board of Directors is the body
governing the Company’s activities and acting on its behalf. The Supervisory Board is the controlling
body of the Company.
Governance of the Company is divided into four departments titled as follows:
Strategy & Communication, Finance, Supply & Wholesale and National Sales. These departments
are managed by the relevant members of the Board of Directors.
On 29 June 2006 the Company concluded profit transfer agreement with its subsidiary NET4GAS, s.r.o.
Based on this agreement NET4GAS, s.r.o. is committed to transfer its annual profit after contribution
to legal reserve fund to the Company. The Company is required to settle a loss of NET4GAS, s.r.o.
that could not be settled from the legal reserve fund or other available funds of NET4GAS, s.r.o.
The agreement expired as at 31 December 2011 by mutual agreement which was approved by general
meetings of both parties in November 2011. The profit transfer for the year ended 31 December 2011
was made according to the profit transfer agreement.
On 14 November 2007 the Company concluded profit transfer agreement with its subsidiary
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Based on this agreement RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. is committed to transfer
its annual profit after contribution to legal reserve fund to the Company. The Company is required
to settle a loss of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. that could not be settled from the legal reserve fund or other
available funds of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
On 4 October 2010 the Company concluded profit transfer agreement with its subsidiary
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. Based on this agreement RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. is committed
to transfer its annual profit after contribution to legal reserve fund to the Company. The Company
is required to settle a loss of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. that could not be settled from the legal reserve
fund or other available funds of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
Accounting policy for profit/loss transfer is described in Note 2.7 Receivables.

RWE Transgas

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
Obsah

2 Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in the Czech Republic and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
as disclosed in notes below.
In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the Czech Republic, the Company
does not prepare consolidated financial statements since it is itself controlled entity and is included
in the consolidated financial statements of its ultimate parent company, RWE Aktiengesellschaft with
its registered office in Opernplatz 1, 45128 Essen, Germany. These consolidated financial statements
are prepared under the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by European Union.
2.2 Intangible fixed assets
All intangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 60 thousand
are treated as intangible fixed assets.
Technical improvements of intangible assets exceeding CZK 40 thousand per year are capitalised.
Purchased intangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with
its acquisition. All research costs are expensed. Development costs of which results are intended
for trading are capitalised as intangible fixed assets and recorded at the lower of cost and the value
of future economic benefits. All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
Intangible fixed assets are amortised applying the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows (unless the agreement or license conditions state shorter or longer period):
Intangible fixed asset

Estimated useful life

Software

3 years

Other intangible fixed assets

6 years

The amortisation plan is updated during the useful life of the intangible fixed assets based on the
expected useful life.
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2.3 Tangible fixed assets
All tangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 10 thousand
are treated as tangible fixed assets.
Repairs and maintenance expenditures of tangible fixed assets are expensed as incurred. Technical
improvements of tangible fixed assets exceeding CZK 40 thousand per year are capitalised.
Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with
its acquisition.
Tangible fixed assets, except for land which is not depreciated, are depreciated applying the straightline method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Tangible fixed asset

Estimated useful life

Buildings and constructions
Plant, machinery and equipment

30–50 years
4–30 years

Furniture & fittings

4–8 years

Motor vehicles

5–8 years

The depreciation plan is updated during the useful life of the tangible fixed assets based on the
expected useful life.
2.4 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries represent ownership interests in enterprises that are controlled
by the Company (“the subsidiary”).
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting.
Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the equity of the subsidiary or the associate as at the
balance sheet date. Revaluation of investment by using the equity method of accounting is recorded
through the Company’s equity.
2.5 Other securities and investments
The Company classifies securities and investments, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates as trading or available-for-sale.
Securities that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from short-term
(maximum of 1 year period) fluctuations in price are classified as trading investments and included
in current assets.
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Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response
to liquidity requirements, are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are included
in non-current assets unless management has the express intention of holding the investment for
less than 12 months from the balance sheet date, in which case they are included in current assets.
Management determines the appropriate classification of investments as at the time of purchase
and the classification is reviewed on a regular basis.
All securities and investments are initially recorded at cost, including transaction costs. Trading
investments and available for sale are subsequently accounted for at fair value. The fair value
is determined as the market value of the securities as at the balance sheet date. If the market
value is not available or it does not sufficiently reflect the fair value the measurement is based
on management estimates based on recognised models or valuation techniques.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of trading instruments are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognised as a movement in equity and recognised
into the income statement on realisation or when permanently impaired.
2.6 Inventories
Inventories of gas, stored in the underground storages, are treated as finished goods. Acquisition cost
of gas includes transport and storage costs.
Total inventory of gas in the underground storages is valued based on the actual status of the
volume of gas in technical units expressed in financial terms. Gas injected is valued using the average
acquisition cost in the month of addition and disposals of the natural gas during the course of the year
(drawings, recalculations due to temperature changes, operating losses) are valued using the average
cost of gas inventory in the underground storages, determined as at the last day of the previous month.
A provision for impairment is established when the carrying value of inventory is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.
Short-term and long-term advances paid for gas purchases are classified in the balance sheet on the
row Prepayments for inventory.
2.7 Receivables
Receivables are stated at nominal value less a provision for doubtful amounts. A provision for doubtful
amounts is created on the basis of an ageing analysis and individual evaluation of the credit worthiness
of the customers. Receivables from related parties have not been provided for.
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Profit transfers (see Note 1 General information) are recognized within estimated receivables against
income from investments in subsidiaries and associates. Loss transfers are recognized within estimated
payables against loss on investments. Estimated receivables/payables are cleared in subsequent
accounting period (profit/loss share paid).
2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
The Company has prepared a cash flow statement using the indirect method.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including
bank overdrafts.
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable
amount of cash and no significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are,
for example, deposits with a maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition and liquid
debt securities traded in public markets.
The Company uses so-called cash-pooling within the Group. A receivable (liability) that arises from
cash-pooling (if it meets conditions for being classified into Cash and cash equivalents) is presented
in the cash flow statement as a part of the item Cash and cash equivalents if it is due within three
months after the balance sheet date.
If the liability arising from cash-pooling represents a form of financing then it is not presented
in the Cash flow statement as a part of the item Cash and cash equivalents.
Other deposits within the Group if they are due within three months after the balance sheet date
are not presented as a part of the item Cash and cash equivalents.
2.9 Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the fixed exchange rate
determined by the Company as at the first day of the month.
Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated
at the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. All exchange
gains and losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances are recorded in the income statement.
The Company treats advances paid for the acquisition of inventories as receivables and therefore
these assets are translated at the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the
balance sheet date.
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2.10 Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest rate
swaps, and other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised on the balance sheet at cost
and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices, discounted cash flow models as appropriate. All derivatives are presented in other receivables
or in other payables when their fair value is positive or negative, respectively.
Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are not treated as separate derivatives.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are included in gain or loss on revaluation
of securities and derivatives.
2.11 Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes as revenue mainly income from the sale of gas, related services and changes
in gas inventories stored in the underground storages. Cost of sales includes mainly the cost of gas
purchases, gas transportation and gas storage in the rented underground storages. Sales are stated net
of discounts and Value Added Tax.
2.12 Provisions
The Company recognises provisions relating to probable future obligations or expenditures, when
the purpose of the obligations or expenditures is known but the precise amount, or the time when
the obligation or expenditure will crystallise, is not known. However, provisions are not created
for future operating expenditures or for expenditures directly related to future revenue transactions.
The Company recognises a provision for an unpaid income tax obligation against current tax expense.
If advances paid for the income tax are higher than the estimated income tax payable the difference
is recognised as a short-term receivable.
2.13 Employment benefits
Regular contributions are made to the state to fund the national pension plan. The Company also
provides contributions to defined contribution plans operated by independent pension funds
and capital life insurance. The contribution for pension and life insurance is recognized as an expense.
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2.14 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset
or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. Deferred tax asset is recognised if it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
2.15 Related parties
The Company’s related parties are considered to be the following:
• parties, of which the Company is a subsidiary or an associate, directly or indirectly, and other
subsidiaries of these parties; and/or
• members of the Company’s or parent company’s statutory and supervisory bodies and management
and parties close to such members, including entities in which they have a controlling or significant
influence; and/or
• subsidiaries and associates and joint-venture companies.
Material transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17.
2.16 Subsequent events
The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation
of the financial statements, are recognised in the financial statements in the case that these events
provide further evidence of conditions that existed as at the balance sheet date.
Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation
of the financial statements, which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the effects of these events are disclosed, but are not themselves recognised in the
financial statements.
2.17 Comparative period
Advances paid for natural gas purchases are recognized in balance sheet in the row Prepayments
for inventory as at 31 December 2011. Subsequently, the advance payments for natural gas
as at 31 December 2010 were reclassified to the row Prepayments for inventory in order to achieve
comparability with the current year balance. The impact of this reclassification is CZK 2,921,692 thousand
which represents the decrease in Short-tem advances paid in the comparative period.
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3 Intangible fixed assets
Cost
1 January 2011
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

6,416

-

(2,452)

3,964

Software

126,067

-

-

126,067

Royalties

13,541

-

-

13,541

146,024

-

(2,452)

143,572

1 January 2011
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

(6,140)

(143)

2,436

(3,847)

(126,067)

-

-

(126,067)

Research & development

Total

Accumulated amortisation

Research & development
Software
Royalties
Total
Net book value

(12,595)

(863)

-

(13,458)

(144,802)

(1,006)

2,436

(143,372)

1,222

200

Cost

Research & development
Software
Royalties
Total

1 January 2010
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

11,848

-

(5,432)

6,416

126,320

-

(253)

126,067

12,793

748

-

13,541

150,961

748

(5,685)

146,024

1 January 2010
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

(8,698)

(989)

3,547

(6,140)

(126,260)

(60)

253

(126,067)

Accumulated amortisation

Research & development
Software
Royalties
Total
Net book value

(11,230)

(1,365)

-

(12,595)

(146,188)

(2,414)

3,800

(144,802)

4,773

1,222
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4 Tangible fixed assets
Cost
1 January 2011
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

15,994

-

-

-

15,994

Buildings, halls and other
constructions

677,060

-

5,090

(101)

682,049

Equipment

Land

434,533

-

89,269

(95,001)

428,801

Other tangible fixed assets

956

-

-

-

956

Tangible fixed assets in the
course of construction

39

96,305

(94,327)

-

2,017

Advances paid for tangible
fixed assets

42

-

(32)

-

10

1,128,624

96,305

-

(95,102)

1,129,827

1 January 2011
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

Buildings, halls and other
constructions

(236,065)

(15,639)

-

35

(251,669)

Equipment

(402,249)

(22,338)

-

91,138

(333,449)

Total

(638,314)

(37,977)

-

91,173

(585,118)

Total
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

490,310

544,709

Cost
1 January 2010
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

19,792

-

-

(3,798)

15,994

Buildings, halls and other
constructions

717,661

-

6,518

(47,119)

677,060

Equipment

Land

554,825

-

475

(120,767)

434,533

Other tangible fixed assets

956

-

-

-

956

Tangible fixed assets in the
course of construction

201

6,831

(6,993)

-

39

Advances paid for tangible
fixed assets

42

-

-

-

42

1,293,477

6,831

-

(171,684)

1,128,624

Total
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Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2010
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

Buildings, halls and other
constructions

(238,764)

(16,533)

-

19,232

(236,065)

Equipment

(493,360)

(27,612)

-

118,723

(402,249)

Total

(732,124)

(44,145)

-

137,955

(638,314)

Net book value

561,353

490,310

5 Investments in subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2011:

Cost
(CZK’000)

% of
capital

2011 net
profit/(loss)
(CZK’000)

Net assets
(CZK’000)

Net value of
investment
(CZK’000)

2011 dividend
income/expense
and other income
(CZK’000)

Czech entities
-

100

5,001,085

38,348,105

33,597,0751

7,337,546

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

5,621,379

100

1,930,187

15,704,710

13,871,0331

1,833,677

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.

126,589

100

(18,418)

133,213

133,213

10,000

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

75,000

100

33,624

118,609

118,609

112,274

NET4GAS, s.r.o.2

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

75,000

100

330,398

412,898

412,898

215,154

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.

10,000

100

54,810

65,810

65,810

74,561

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

55,000

100

(105,809)

(48,059)

7,319

100

(33,160)3

61,3923

61,392

-

7,192,717

54,796,678

48,315,030

9,480,153

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
Total

5,970,287

55,000

1

(103,059)

1	The net value of investment in NET4GAS, s.r.o. was decreased by profit share income from NET4GAS, s.r.o. for the year 2011
in the amount of CZK 4,751,030 thousand. The net value of investment in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. was decreased by profit share
income from RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. for the year 2011 in the amount of CZK 1,833,677 thousand. The net value of investment
in RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. was modified by accumulated loss from RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. for the year 2011 in the negative
amount of CZK 103,059 thousand.
2	In 2011 there was a reduction of NET4GAS, s.r.o.’s share capital by CZK 15,000,000 thousand. Consequently there was a reduction of the
cost value to CZK nil. The difference in the amount of CZK 2,586,516 thousand (which represents difference between reduction of share
capital of CZK 15,000,000 thousand and cost of investments of 12,413,484 thousand) is recognised in the income statement as the
income from investments in subsidiaries and associates.
3	Non-audited figures as of the date of issue of the financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2010:

Cost
(CZK’000)

% of
capital

2011 net
profit/(loss)
(CZK’000)

Net assets
(CZK’000)

Net value of
investment
(CZK’000)

2010 dividend
income
(CZK’000)

12,413,484

100

5,026,166

53,121,878

48,347,0201

4,774,857

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

5,621,379

100

1,341,893

15,049,321

13,774,523

1,274,798

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.

126,589

100

12,267

163,771

163,771

-

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

75,000

100

112,274

197,259

197,259

111,625

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

75,000

100

215,154

297,653

297,653

98,558

Czech entities
NET4GAS, s.r.o.

1

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.

10,000

100

74,562

85,562

85,562

62,247

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

55,000

100

64,529

106,001

57,7511

48,250

7,319

100

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
Total

18,383,771

54,729

100,000

100,000

-

6,901,574

69,121,444

63,023,539

6,370,335

1	The net value of investment in NET4GAS, s.r.o. was decreased by profit share income from NET4GAS, s.r.o. for the year 2010 in the
amount of CZK 4,774,857 thousand. The net value of investment in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. was decreased by profit share income from
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. for the year 2010 in the amount of CZK 1,274,798 thousand. The net value of investment in RWE Key Account CZ,
s.r.o. was decreased by profit share income from RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. for the year 2010 in the amount of CZK 48,250 thousand.

Registered office of NET4GAS, s.r.o. is at Prague 4 – Nusle, Na Hřebenech 11 1718/8.
Registered office of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. is at Prague 9, Prosecká 855/68.
Registered office of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. is at Prague 4 Michle, U Plynárny 223/42.
Registered office of RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. is at Prague 9, Prosecká 855/68.
Registered office of RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. is at Brno, Plynárenská 499/1.
Registered office of RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o. is at Ostrava, Plynární 2748/6.
Registered office of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. is at Prague 10 – Strašnice, Limuzská 12/3135.
Registered office of RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. is at Košice, Mlynská 31, the Slovak Republic.
There are no differences between the percentage of ownership and the percentage of voting rights
in any subsidiary. No controlling agreements have been concluded with subsidiary undertakings.
The Company has entered into profit transfer agreements with companies NET4GAS, s.r.o.,
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. and RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. (see Note 1 General information).
The agreement expired as at 31 December 2011 by mutual agreement which was approved by general
meetings of both parties in November 2011. The profit transfer of NET4GAS, s.r.o. for the year ended
31 December 2011 was operated according to the profit transfer agreement.
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6 Other securities and investments
6.1 Available-for-sale investments
As at 31 December 2011:

Number
of shares

Nominal
value
(CZK’000)

Fair value
(CZK’000)

Acquisition
value
(CZK’000)

2011
dividend
income
(CZK’000)

Czech entities
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.

36,778

66,200

290,142

71,725

39,546

374,378

374,378

2,241,401

457,853

304,369

28,355

28,355

140,924

52,504

25,837

608

3,039

3,039

1,634

2,675,506

585,121

371,386

Fair value
(CZK’000)

Acquisition
value
(CZK’000)

2010
dividend
income
(CZK’000)

Foreign entities
Other
Total

As at 31 December 2010:

Number
of shares

Nominal
value
(CZK’000)

Czech entities
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.

36,778

66,200

290,142

71,725

30,542

374,378

374,378

2,241,401

457,853

245,592

28,355

28,355

140,924

52,504

18,607

Foreign entities
Other
Total

608

3,039

3,039

661

2,675,506

585,121

295,402

During the period and as at the balance sheet date, the Company held only available for sale investments.
The overall impact on equity resulting from revaluation of investments in 2011 was negative
and amounted to CZK 2,295,025 thousand which represented decrease in value of other investments
in subsidiaries by the equivalence method. There was not any change in value of other long-term
securities and shares in 2011.
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The overall impact on equity resulting from revaluation of investments in 2010 was
of CZK 738,006 thousand (consisting of CZK 549,747 thousand from increase in value of other
investments in subsidiaries by the equivalence method and CZK 188,259 thousand the increase in value
of other long-term securities and shares to the fair value).
6.2 Intra-group loans — subsidiaries and controlling parties, associates
Intra-group loans are specified in Note 17 Related party transactions.
7 Inventories
Neither shortage nor surplus was identified during 2011 inventory stock-counts. The Company
created a provision for gas stored in the underground storage as at 31 December 2011
of CZK 1,570,000 thousand (as at 31 December 2010: CZK nil).
8 Receivables
31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

2,073,010

4,463,836

991,966

513,660

Trade receivables
– current
– overdue
Total trade receivables

3,064,976

4,977,496

Anticipated assets

15,630,401

14,776,214

23,500,314

30,717,025

-

(513,620)

42,195,691

49,957,115

412

410

Other receivables
– current
Provision for doubtful receivables
Net book value of short-term receivables
Long-term trade receivables
Deferred tax receivable

3,658,222

3,549,624

Total long-term receivables

3,658,634

3,550,034

45,854,325

53,507,149

Total net book value of receivables

As at 31 December 2010 the income tax provision of CZK 411,489 thousand was decreased by tax
advances payments of CZK 798,736 thousand and classified as Taxes and state subsidies receivable.
In 2011 the Company reached the current income tax loss and did not pay any current income
tax advances.
Trade receivables as at 31 December 2011 include mainly receivables for gas sales to regional
gas traders.
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Other receivables as at 31 December 2011 include mainly intercompany deposits in the amount
of CZK 10,900,000 thousand (2010: CZK 18,600,000 thousand), cash-pooling receivables from
RWE Group companies in the amount of CZK 5,349,133 thousand (2010: CZK 4,134,461 thousand), from
which CZK 400,000 thousand (2010: CZK 563,000 thousand) are due after more than 3 months from the
balance sheet date; the part of long-term loan payable within one year from the balance sheet date in the
amount of CZK 221,500 thousand (2010: CZK nil); receivables from financial derivates in the amount
of CZK 6,743,354 thousand (2010: CZK 7,325,887 thousand) (see Note 17 Related party transactions)
and short term advances paid in the amount of CZK 266,257 thousand (2010: CZK 249,438 thousand).
Estimated receivables as at 31 December 2011 contain mainly dividend income from subsidiaries
NET4GAS, s.r.o. and RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. for 2011 of CZK 6,584,707 thousand (as at 31 December 2010
including RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.: CZK 6,097,906 thousand) and unbilled gas deliveries
of CZK 8,693,878 thousand (2010: CZK 8,678,308 thousand).
For an analysis of deferred tax asset, see Note 14 Taxation.
Unsettled receivables have not been secured and none of them are due after more than 5 years except
for the loan provided to subsidiary NET4GAS, s.r.o. which is due on 23 December 2021 at the latest;
and part of loan provided to RWE GasNet, s.r.o. from which CZK 5,421,949 thousand is due after more
than 5 years (both disclosed in Note 17 Related party transactions).
The change in the provision for doubtful receivables can be analysed as follows:

Opening balance as at 1 January
Charge for the year
Released during the year
Closing balance as at 31 December

2011
(CZK’000)

2010
(CZK’000)

513,620

811

-

513,620

(513,620)

(811)

-

513,620

During 2011 the provision for doubtful receivables was released in relation to the positive outcome
of the arbitration proceedings with one of the shippers transiting natural gas through the Czech Republic.
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9 Equity
Authorised and issued share capital
31 December 2011

Ordinary shares of CZK 800, fully paid

31 December 2010

No.
of pieces

Carrying value
(CZK’000)

No.
of pieces

Carrying value
(CZK’000)

36,550,385

29,240,308

36,550,385

29,240,308

The Company is fully owned by 100% shareholder RWE Gas International N.V., incorporated
in Netherlands, and the ultimate holding company is RWE Aktiengesellschaft, incorporated in Germany.
The legal reserve fund is created from the profit of the Company according to law and may not
be distributed to shareholders, but may be used to offset losses only.
On 24 March 2011 the sole shareholder approved the financial statements for 2010 and decided about
to cover the loss incurred in 2010 of CZK 4,859,433 thousand from the statutory reserve fund.
10 Provisions
Income tax provision
(CZK’000)
Opening balance as at 1 January 2010

Other provision
(CZK’000)

Total
(CZK’000)

1,147,710

2,554,246

3,701,956

Charge for the year

-

18,005,902

18,005,902

Released in the year

-

(1,219,386)

(1,219,386)

(1,147,710)

(814,718)

(1,962,428)

Closing balance as at 31 December 2010

Used in the year

-

18,526,044

18,526,044

Charge for the year

-

130,778

130,778

Released in the year

-

(4,048,088)

(4,048,088)

Used in the year

-

(645,606)

(645,606)

Closing balance as at 31 December 2011

-

13,963,128

13,963,128

For an analysis of the current and deferred income taxes, see Note 14 Income tax.
Other provisions in the total amount of CZK 13,963,128 thousand (as at 31 December 2010:
CZK 18,526,044 thousand) contain mainly the provision for future losses and risks arising from signed
long-term gas purchase contracts and expected unfavourable trend in market prices.
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11 Payables
31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

1,665,227

908,145

14,878,121

9,087,836

Trade payables
– current
Estimated payables
Other payables
– current
Total short-term liabilities
Long-term trade payables
Total short-term and long-term liabilities

20,068,998

29,697,399

36,612,346

39,693,380

2,013

2,013

36,614,359

39,695,393

Estimated payables as at 31 December 2011 contain mainly accrual for unbilled gas deliveries
in the amount of CZK 14,595,124 thousand (2010: CZK 9,045,172 thousand) and liability to cover loss
of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. for 2011 CZK 103,059 thousand (as at 31 December 2010: CZK nil).
Other payables as at 31 December 2011 contain mainly cash-pooling payables to RWE group companies
(see Note 17 Related party transactions) of CZK 12,259,628 thousand (2010: CZK 19,773,432 thousand),
from which CZK 6,500,000 thousand (2010: CZK 13,500,000 thousand) are due after more than
3 months from the balance sheet date; Value Added Tax payable of CZK 1,158,979 thousand
(2010: CZK 878,262 thousand) and negative fair value of derivatives of CZK 6,871,847 thousand
(2010: CZK 8,543,001 thousand), see Note 13 Derivative financial instruments.
The Company does not have any overdue payables related to social or health insurance or any other
overdue payables to tax authorities or other state institutions.
Trade and other payables have not been secured against any assets of the Company and not due after
more than 5 years.
12 Bank loans and other borrowings
The Company has overdraft and revolving credit lines with Citibank, ČSOB and Komerční banka,
which were not used for drawing the loans as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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13 Derivative financial instruments
The fair value of derivatives is presented in “Other receivables” if positive, or in “Other payables”
if negative. The derivatives can be analysed as follows:
Forward instruments
31 December 2011
Fair value
Positive
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
Notional
amount
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Fair value
Positive
(CZK’000)

Notional
amount
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Currency forwards

154,328

(174,662)

7,595,641

159,110

(194,665)

6,824,254

Total trading
agreements

154,328

(174,662)

7,595,641

159,110

(194,665)

6,824,254

Swap instruments
31 December 2011
Fair value

31 December 2010
Fair value

Positive
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Volume of
commodity
(CZK’000)

Positive
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Volume of
commodity
(CZK’000)

Fuel oil commodity
swap

2,233,359

(2,860,099)

(685,917) t

1,451,990

(1,993,403)

(725,454)t

Gas oil commodity
swap

4,068,924

(3,449,329)

559,503 t

3,769,855

(4,306,820)

373,803t

222,396

(206,264)

1,089,347 t

1,886,753

(1,640,762)

999,542t

64,347

(181,493)

(2,161) GWh

58,179

(407,351)

(2,120) GWh

Coal commodity swap
Index commodity
swap

Notional amount of forward instruments and volume of commodity swap instruments represent
net volume of concluded forward and swap transactions.
Gains and losses from realised derivatives transactions:
2011
(CZK’000)

2010
(CZK’000)

Gains from currency derivates

2,302,346

3,616,829

Losses from currency derivates

(2,833,487)

(4,033,126)

Gains from commodity derivates
Losses from commodity derivates
Total

12,931,961

6,144,149

(15,506,596)

(6,419,211)

(3,105,776)

(691,359)

Changes in fair value of trading derivatives are recorded in the income statement.
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Certain derivative transactions, although providing effective economic hedges under the Company’s risk
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under Czech accounting rules. Therefore,
they are presented above as trading derivatives.
14 Income tax
The income tax expense can be analysed as follows:
2011
(CZK’000)
Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Adjustment of prior year tax expense based on final CIT return
Total income tax revenue

2010
(CZK’000)

-

411,489

(108,597)

(3,141,008)

(10,204)

(21,246)

(118,801)

(2,750,765)

2011
(CZK’000)

2010
(CZK’000)

Deferred tax asset/(liability) can be analysed as follows:

Net profit/loss before taxation
Non-taxable income
Difference between accounting and tax depreciation
Non-tax deductible costs
Gifts
Net taxable profit
Corporate income tax at 19%

9,232,607

(7,610,198)

(15,286,943)

(6,772,917)

(6,695)

8,215

1,891,792

16,555,473

-

(14,746)

(4,169,239)

2,165,827

-

411,507

Tax discount

-

(18)

Tax to be paid

-

411,489

The deferred tax was calculated at 19% (the rate enacted for 2010 and subsequent years).
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Deferred tax asset/(liability) can be analysed as follows:
31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

Difference between carrying value accounting and tax base
of fixed assets

(22,910)

(22,312)

Contracted penalty, payable in 2012

(16,717)

-

(39,627)

(22,312)

Other provisions

2,905,694

3,571,936

Tax loss in 2011

792,155

-

3,658,222

3,549,624

Deferred tax liability arising from

Total deferred tax liability
Deferred tax asset arising from:

Net deferred tax asset

15 Revenue analysis
Revenue from operating activities can be analysed as follows:
2011
(CZK’000)

2010
(CZK’000)

Trade with natural gas
– foreign

90,154,923

66,411,190

– domestic

39,242,374

44,908,463

– domestic

5,449,797

5,834,175

Other revenues

1,137,053

1,155,863

135,984,147

118,309,691

Transit / services associated with transit

Total sales of own products and services

RWE Transgas

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
Obsah

16 Employees

Members of Statutory bodies who are employees
Average number of other members of management

2011

2010

1

1

19

16

Average number of other staff

388

291

Total number of employees

408

308

The Company’s management includes executive members of the Board of Directors and other directors
and managers directly reporting to them.
Management
(CZK’000)

Other staff
(CZK’000)

Total
(CZK’000)

Wages and salaries

64,880

283,688

348,568

Social security costs

12,960

97,843

110,803

2011

Other social costs

247

10,393

10,640

2,460

-

2,460

80,547

391,924

472,471

Wages and salaries

57,000

206,608

263,608

Social security costs

10,198

77,095

87,293

Bonuses to the members of statutory bodies
Total staff costs
2010

Other social costs
Bonuses to the members of statutory bodies
Total staff costs

288

10,573

10,861

2,640

-

2,640

70,126

294,276

364,402

Other transactions with the Company’s management and members of the Board of Directors
are described in Note 17 – Related party transactions.
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17 Related party transactions
The Company was involved in the following related party transactions:
2011
(CZK’000)

2010
(CZK’000)

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group
(services, interest, financial instruments, gas)

1,426,135

470,338

RWE Aktiengesellschaft (services, financial instruments)

5,672,563

9,566,650

79,711,497

41,777,647

273,231

127,824

-

107,367

Purchases

RWE Supply & Trading GmbH (natural gas, services, financial instruments)
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. (interest, financial instruments, gas)
RWE Vertrieb AG (financial instruments)
RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. (services, interest, fixed assets)

251,821

118,291

NET4GAS, s.r.o. (services, gas, interest)

7,970,388

8,181,339

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. (storage capacity, interest)

4,566,950

3,797,750

129,209

45,578

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. (financial instruments)
Other

28,874

9,527

100,030,668

64,202,311

32,633,131

39,070,518

RWE Supply & Trading GmbH

83,347,733

58,402,013

Other

10,028,351

3,802,286

126,009,215

101,274,817

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group
(interest, services, financial instruments)

1,008,023

635,276

RWE Aktiengesellschaft (services, interest, financial instruments)

5,672,083

10,236,467

-

97,507

592,436

637,564

22,723,828

15,078,023

496,738

227,973

30,493,108

26,912,810

Total purchases
Sales of natural gas
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

Total sales of natural gas
Other sales

RWE Vertrieb AG (financial instruments)
NET4GAS, s.r.o. (storage capacity, services)
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH (financial instruments, services)
Other
Total other sales
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The following related party balances were outstanding as at:
31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

1,110,928

3,070,012

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.

274,537

340,503

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

113,828

144,053

Trade receivables
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

Other
Total trade receivables

120,360

88,495

1,619,653

3,643,063

189,378

188,570

Advances paid
NET4GAS, s.r.o.
RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
Total advances paid

1,285

-

57,756

58,630

248,419

247,200

36,168

2,982

Anticipated assets / accruals and deferrals
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH

8,670,544

8,480,427

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

17,988

23,929

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

311,889

322,143

20,426

20,633

9,057,015

8,850,114

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

4,751,030

4,774,857

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

1,833,677

1,274,798

Other
Total anticipated assets / accruals and deferrals
Receivables from profit transfer

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
Total receivables from profit transfer

-

48,250

6,584,707

6,097,905

67

68

financial part
Notes to Financial Statements
Obsah

31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

154,328

159,110

54,392

11,488

-

-

6,524,679

7,108,598

627

1,879

Other receivables (from derivatives)
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
RWE Vertrieb AG
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group
Total other receivables

9,328

44,812

6,743,354

7,325,887

4,696,254

3,490,886

Loans receivable / cash-pooling receivables
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

10,900,000

18,600,000

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

400,000

580,574

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

400,035

63,000

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.
Total loans receivable / cash-pooling receivables

74,344

-

16,470,633

22,734,460

-

20,000

Long-term loans
RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.
NET4GAS, s.r.o.
RWE GasNet, s.r.o.

11,000,000

-

6,423,500

1,000,000

Total long-term loans

17,423,500

1,020,000

Total receivables/accruals and deferrals

58,147,281

49,918,629
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31 December 2011
(CZK’000)

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

460,369

250,453

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

375,435

381,113

Other

491,766

3,984

1,327,570

635,550

Trade payables

Total trade payables
Anticipated payables / accruals and deferrals
NET4GAS, s.r.o.
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
Other

222,250

311,740

6,286,310

2,979,778

9,547

2,134

6,518,107

3,293,652

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

103,059

-

Total payables from profit transfer

103,059

-

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

169,515

255,864

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

174,662

194,664

-

127,681

6,515,692

7,940,986

11,978

23,806

6,871,847

8,543,001

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

2,014,148

4,024,852

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

2,573,359

1,498,716

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

7,075,516

13,772,303

RWE East, s.r.o.

267,513

999

Total anticipated payables / accruals and deferrals
Payables from loss transfer

Other payables (from derivatives)

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
Total other payables (from derivatives)
Cash-pooling payables

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.

67,795

83,662

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

252,475

368,906

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

8,813

-

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

9

10,256

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.

-

13,738

Total cash-pooling payables

12,259,628

19,773,432

Total payables / accruals and deferrals

27,080,211

32,245,635

The loans receivable, cash-pooling receivables and payables bear interest at market interest rates.
The Company cars are made available for use by Board members and other management in total
acquisition costs of CZK 31,294 thousand (2010: CZK 20,335 thousand).
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The Company provides foreign members of management with accommodation, in 2011 rent totalled
to CZK 2,766 thousand (2010: CZK 2,824 thousand).
Share option bonus plan has been provided to the management, in 2011 provision for this plan was
created in the amount of CZK 520 thousand (2010: CZK 7,223 thousand).
Total remuneration for members of the Board of Directors was CZK 1,740 thousand
(2010: CZK 1,740 thousand). Total remuneration for members of the Supervisory Board
was CZK 720 thousand (2010: CZK 900 thousand). These remunerations are part of staff costs.
Besides the above disclosed remuneration and benefits, there was no other cash or non-cash
consideration provided in 2011 and 2010 to the Company’s shareholders, members of the Company’s
Boards and management.
18 Fees paid and payable to the audit company
The information relating to the fees paid and payable for services performed by the audit company
is included in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company of the group.
19 Commitments
There were no capital commitments contracted by the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
20 Contingent liabilities
The Company issued guarantees as at 31 December 2011 in the amount of CZK 1,113,241 thousand
(as at 31 December 2010: 1,181,209 thousand).
The complaint for compensation of damages filed by GBI Investments CZ, a.s. against
RWE Transgas, a.s. was dismissed. The Prague Higher Court dismissed an appeal of the legal successor
of GBI Investments CZ, a.s. against the negative decision of the Municipal Court in Prague at the end
of 2011. After the court decision in writing will have been served the same will become final. However,
the plaintiff may file an extraordinary appeal against the decision of the Prague Higher Court.
The management of the Company is not aware of any significant unrecorded contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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21 Cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the cash flow statement can be analysed as follows:
31 December 2011
(CZK’000)
Cash on hand and in transit
Cash in bank
Receivables / (liabilities) arising from cash-pooling
Total cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2010
(CZK’000)

827

1,162

701,072

1,267,157

(810,495)

(2,701,971)

(108,596)

(1,433,652)

22 Subsequent events
In December 2011 the Company concluded the agreements on transfer of ownership interest
in KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. (100% interest) and KA Contracting SK, s.r.o. (15% interest) with the company
RWE KAC Dezentrale Energien GmbH & Co. KG. The agreements became effective on 1 January 2012
when the Company became the sole shareholder of KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. and 15% shareholder
of KA Contracting SK, s.r.o. The changes in ownership were registered in the Commercial Register
on 13 February 2012 (KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.) and on 27 January 2012 (KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.).
No other events have occurred subsequent to year-end that would have a material impact on the
financial statements as at 31 December 2011.

15 February 2012

Martin Friedrich Herrmann

Dirk Simons

Chairman of the Board of Directors	Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
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6 Independent Auditor's Report
6.1 Auditor's Report on Financial Statements

To the shareholder of RWE Transgas, a.s.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RWE Transgas, a.s.,
identification number 26460815, with registered office at Limuzská 12/3135,
Praha 10 - Strašnice (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2011, the income statement, statement of changes in equity
and cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes, including a summary
of significant accounting policies (“the financial statements”).

Statutory Body’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Czech accounting legislation, and
for such internal controls as the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors
of the Czech Republic, International Standards on Auditing and the related application
guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Kateřinská 40/466 Prague 2, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F:+420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered with
the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.
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Independent auditor’s report
Shareholder of RWE Transgas, a.s.

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2011, its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.
15 February 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
represented by partner

Tomáš Bašta
Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 1966
Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of our
report takes precedence over the English version.
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6.2 Auditor’s Report on the Annual Report

To the shareholder of RWE Transgas, a.s.
We have audited the financial statements of RWE Transgas, a.s., identification
number 26460815, with registered office at Limuzská 12/3135, Praha 10 - Strašnice
(“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2011 disclosed in the annual report
on pages 40–71 and issued the opinion dated 15 February 2012 and disclosed
on pages 74–75.

Report on the Annual Report
We have verified that the other information included in the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 is consistent with the financial
statements referred to above. The Statutory Body is responsible for the accuracy of the
annual report. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the
annual report with the financial statements based on our verification procedures.

Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our verification procedures in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing and the related application guidance of the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the verification procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the other
information included in the annual report which describes matters that are also
presented in the financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the
relevant financial statements. We believe that the verification procedures performed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F: +420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered with
the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.
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Independent auditor’s report
Shareholder of RWE Transgas, a.s.

Opinion
In our opinion, the other information included in the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is consistent, in all material respects,
with the financial statements.
9 March 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
represented by partner

Tomáš Bašta
Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 1966

Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of our
report takes precedence over the English version.

77

Obsah

Obsah

Scheme of the relations between and control of companies along the relevant line within
the RWE Group as at 31 December 2011
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
100.00% RWE Beteiligungsverwaltung Ausland GmbH
98.00% RWE East, s.r.o.
51.00% EČS - Elektrárna Čechy-Střed, a.s.
100.00% RWE Gas International N.V.
100.00% RWE Transgas, a.s.
100.00% NET4GAS, s.r.o.
100.00% BRAWA, a.s.
100.00% RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
18.09% Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
2.95% Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.
2.46% Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% RWE Energie, a.s.
100.00% RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
63.62% Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% VČP Net, s.r.o.
49.64% Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% SMP Net, s.r.o.
47.66% Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% JMP Net, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Energy Hungária Tanácsadó Kft.
2.00% RWE East, s.r.o.
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RWE Transgas, a.s.
Limuzská 12/3135
CZ – 100 98 Praha 10 – Strašnice
T +420 267 971 111
F +420 267 976 965
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